
 

 

 

TOCCOA PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

March 21, 2024, 5:00 P.M. 

City Hall Commission Conference Room 

     

 

1. Meeting Called to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Approval of Regular Meeting February 15
th

, 2024 Minutes 

4. Approval of Agenda 

5. Reports  

 

I. Old Business  

    

 

II. New Business 

 
A. Zoning Variance Request: Applicant, Mr. Brandon Bell, is requesting a zoning variance for one 

parcel located on Persimmon Street (Tax Map T13 Parcel 009) to allow a waiver of lot width 

requirements. 

  

  

III. Other Business 

 

A.     

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE:  March 14
th

, 2024 

TO:  Toccoa Planning Commission 

FROM:  Jeremy Ward, Planning Director  

RE:  Zoning Variance Request 

 

 

Applicant, Mr. Brandon Bell, is requesting a zoning variance for one parcel located on Persimmon Street 

(Tax Map T13 Parcel 009). The parcel is zoned R-II (Two-Family Residential). The parcel is 0.22 acres. 

 

Mr. Bell has requested this parcel zoning variance in order to develop a small single-family house on it. The 

parcel has never been developed previously. The house would comply with front, side, and rear setback 

requirements, and the site is above the minimum lot area of 9,000 square feet. The only issue is the lot 

width. Currently at approximately 60 feet, this is 20 feet lower than the minimum required for the zoning of 

80 feet. The majority of houses adjacent to this lot are also slimmer than 60 feet. Most of them measure 

between 50 and 70 feet in width. 

 

Please find included in this packet:  

 

1. Planning standards 

2. A copy of the specifications of the requested zoning district. 

3. The zoning report 

4. Copy of the application 

5. Deed and plat 

6. Several site maps and images of the subject property and surrounding area.  

 

Below, please find a copy of our standards addressed by the planning staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Planning Standards 

 
 

1. Existing uses and zoning of nearby properties. 

 

The property is currently undeveloped, and records do not ever indicate any development on it. It sits 

near the future Viesain Pharmaceutical Company off of Peachtree Street. A majority of the houses on 

the street are small (under 1,000 square feet), old (primarily built in the 1950s), and rentals on small 

lots, built largely to house workers for nearby plants.  

  

2. The extent to which property values are diminished by the particular zoning restrictions. 

The surrounding properties are a mix of commercial and residential properties. The current size of the 

parcel prohibits construction of a new house under current city zoning ordinances, as the lot width is 

less than the required 80 feet. This fact renders the site unbuildable unless a zoning variance is granted. 

 

3. The extent to which the destruction of property value of the landowners promotes the health, 

safety, morals, or general welfare of the public. 

This rezoning would constitute a reasonably suitable use of the property. This restriction does not 

substantially promote the health, safety, morals, or general welfare of the public. If anything, given 

Toccoa’s critical need for entry-level/workforce housing, the current zoning hinders the health of 

Toccoa. 

Because most of the lots on this street are a similar size to this one, but were built upon before 

implementation of the Zoning Ordinance, a new house will merely mirror the existing state of the 

neighborhood and will not inflict any hardship on the immediate neighbors that other adjacent houses 

do not currently experience. 

 

4. The relative gain for the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual property 

owner. 

Mr. Bell hopes to build an appropriately-sized house for the lot, and in the process, help to replenish 

our aging and inadequate housing stock one step at a time. In my opinion, there is a net gain for the 

public. 

 

5. The suitability of the subject property for the zoned purposes. 

The property is narrow and not flat, but certainly flat enough for a small house to be built on it. He 

should have no challenges with the construction. 

 



6. The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considering the context of the land 

development in the area and vicinity of the property. 

The property has been vacant for its entire history, as far as records indicate, and is located in an area of 

the City in need of redevelopment. A major new industrial development is occurring just up the road 

on Peachtree Street, expected to employ up to 100 workers within a few years. 

 

 

 











CamScanner

https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download


CamScanner

https://v3.camscanner.com/user/download




Figure 1 

Nearby zoning 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Picture 1 

 

 

Picture 2 

 



Picture 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Figure 7 

Location of above pictures 
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